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	Q.1
	On Page 16 of the application manual and in the project focus of group 1, it is mentioned that the research can include “downhole sensor technologies for well logging and thru-tubing logging”. But on the next page, there is a requirement that, “The project should achieve continuous and real-time monitoring, and address challenges in standardization of communication protocols and cyber security.” Our understanding is that any well logging is not a continuous monitoring operation. So my question is if the intention is to develop a continuous corrosion or other monitoring system within the casing or thru-tubing?

	A.1
	The monitoring system should be able to provide measurement data based on reasonable frequencies, which help to identify damages at a very early stage before developing into infrastructure failures. Incidents should be captured in a timely manner to minimize the consequences. It would also be beneficial if the technologies help to improve well logging data quality to fulfill DOGGR requirements.

	Q.2
	Does the proposal need to include work addressing the microbial corrosion (p. 17 of the Program) and if yes, to what extent?

	A.2
	Yes, the technology proposed should have the capability to monitor microbial corrosion. There is no specific requirement as to what extent microbial corrosion should be addressed. However, microbial corrosion monitoring should help to identify corrosion events at an early stage and provide quality data for facility operators. Understanding DOGGR’s requirements and the current technological challenges or gaps by coordinating with utilities would help to better address this issue.

	Q.3
	For Group 1:
• Are there already installed fibers along the pipelines and the gas tanks? If yes, what type? If no, who is responsible for installation?
• What is the acceptance criteria? How does the CEC plan to demonstrate a mock leakage in the field? Where does the CEC plan to hold the test site?

	A.3
	Yes, there are fiber optic sensors installed to pipelines or storage wells. We encourage applicants to conduct their own research on the current status of the technology. 
The applicants should determine how the proposed research addresses the solicitation requirements to ensure acceptance. 
The grant recipients will be responsible for securing test sites and performing field demonstrations by coordinating with natural gas utilities, sub-contractors, and project partners.
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	Q.4
	We are focused on the Smart Shutoff project. We have 1 device entering the marketplace and believe the additional 2 devices would be well suited for this Program. How should we propose this?

	A.4
	We cannot advise applicants on how to develop an application. We encourage applicants to read the Solicitation Manual, which lists all the requirements. We also encourage entities that are new to applying to the California Energy Commission (CEC) solicitations, to partner with entities within California that have worked with the CEC or other research organizations.   
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	Q.5
	It seems like you want six months demonstration for each of the groups. For the real-time aspect of group one and group two, I understand that. For group three where it is more of a detection problem, and location problem, are you looking for the grant recipient to establish a facility that could be returned to for six months? Or would you provide an area where the developed technology would be demonstrated?   

	A.5
	The application requires six months of demonstration. Applicants can demonstrate their technology at multiple locations. The six-month requirement is to ensure awardees collect a sufficient amount of data to analyze, so the technology can produce reliable conclusions. The grant awardees shall identify project site(s) and demonstrate the performance of the technology. This can be done by coordinating with natural gas utilities or project partners. The CEC is not responsible for providing demonstration sites to applicants. 

	Q.6
	The solicitation states, "The locating accuracy in all the three dimensions should be improved by at least 15 percent from the current accuracy of mainstream locating equipment on the market." Who provides the value for the "current accuracy"? There are many mainstream locators on the market, and varying levels of accuracy. What is the benchmark we are starting with, to determine the 15% improvement factor?

	A.6
	We do not provide a general reference here because the accuracy may change depending on the type of technology, as well as the specific applications. We expect the applicant to identify the baseline information for the proposed technology and the methodology used to calculate the 15% improvement. The applicant shall provide reference material on the technology and baseline information. 

	Q.7
	For the locating underground pipelines, is this for new locating devices, or for taking data from locating devices and building 3d models of the locations?  Is this also only for pipelines or for distribution as well?

	A.7
	Group three is open to both transmission and distribution lines. Applicants can apply their technology to either part of the pipelines system or both. There is no limit on the types of technologies or products. Applicants can propose a new technology or improve performance and functionality of existing products.

	Q.8
	3-D mapping technology from Europe is at a big scoring disadvantage. Has CEC been successful in the past at acquiring breakthrough technology outside of California?

	A.8
	We have had some past success with adopting technologies outside California.  
We encourage applicants outside of California to partner with in-state entities to develop a competitive application.  

	Q.9
	For Group 3:
• What is the average length, diameter, thickness, and material of the pipelines?
• What is the maximum depth of pipelines?

	A.9
	We encourage applicants to conduct their own research on the current status of pipelines. 
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	Q.10
	Does already commercial predictive maintenance technology for topic 1 and topic 2 qualify? The technology application currently does not address NG safety infrastructure, so this grant will be utilized to develop this application.

	A.10
	If the technology can help to improve the natural gas infrastructure safety, applicants can submit their proposed projects. We are open to all different types of technologies, including technologies introduced from other industries to be used for natural gas. However, applicants are responsible for explaining how the technology can be adopted and advanced to meet the solicitation requirements. 
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	Q.11
	Are any types of mobile sensing platforms allowed (e.g. cars, drones)? If allowed, is there any limitation/regulation? Is it possible to visit an example facility for a site survey?

	A.11
	Projects in Groups 1 & 2 focus on stationary sensor technologies which help to identify damages or leaks by monitoring system/building status. Group 3 projects have requirements on the portability and mobility for the locating and mapping platform. The CEC is not responsible for providing demonstration site to applicants.

	Q.12
	We are seeking funding to help support our operation in the event of power outages by providing our workforce with connectivity via internet hotspots, bollards to protect our transformer from damage, and/or solar energy.

	A.12
	We understand the urgent need to keep operating during power outages. However, the request is beyond the scope of this solicitation. We encourage you to check the CEC’s grant funding opportunities under the EPIC program (https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-topics/programs/electric-program-investment-charge-epic-program) for other funding opportunities that address grid resiliency.
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	Q.13
	Can you explain a little bit more of the requirement of past CEC experience? Is it required to have past CEC experience? Or is it just necessary to get bonus points?

	A.13
	It is not a requirement to have past experience with the CEC, and there are no bonus points for having past CEC experience. The first scoring criterion is set up to evaluate past performance of entities or individuals that have contracted with the CEC.  For applicants without past CEC experience, please note the criterion states in part an “applicant [that] has not received funds from the Energy Commission (e.g., contract, grant, or loan) through an agreement with the Energy Commission” will receive 13-15 points.  Previous or no previous performance will be factored according to the criterion and a score will be determined.
For more details, please see the solicitation manual section IV.F. Page 33.  

	Q.14
	If you haven’t worked with the Commission in the past? Is it then a moot point for those applicants? Or how would you evaluate at that point?

	A.14
	For scoring criterion #1 “Project Team Past Performance with Energy Commission,”
having no past experience with the CEC will fall under the “No/minor performance issues” with a range of 13-15 points.  

	Q.15
	You wouldn’t look for relevant past experience with other organizations?

	A.15
	Past experience with other organizations will not be evaluated under criteria one. However, past experience with other organizations would be evaluated and taken into consideration as part of the criterion under scoring criteria five “Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources”. 
For more details, please see the solicitation manual section IV.F. Page 35 and 36 Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources.

	Q.16 
	For the 60% combined expenditure in the state of California, is that by all entities under the project, including subcontractors, or just the grant recipient? 

	A.16
	Yes, the 60% applies to the combined expenditure of all entities under the project. The percentage is based on the recipient and subcontractors receiving CEC funds and spending the funds in California. Match funds do not count.

	Q.17 
	About the Terms and Conditions, there are three that might be used. How would you select which one would be used?

	A.17
	The applicable Terms and Conditions is based on the type of entity applying. There are three Natural Gas Grant Terms and Conditions, one for all universities with in the Regents of the University of California and California State Universities, one for U.S. Department of Energy National Laboratories, and the last is standard for all other entities.
Applicants are encouraged to review their applicable Terms and Conditions which can be found here: https://www.energy.ca.gov/funding-opportunities/funding-resources 

	Q.18
	In terms of the ultimate contract that are established are these firm fix price contracts, or time and materials contracts, or costs reimbursable? Is that depending on how it goes? Do you have a preference? How does that work?

	A.18
	The awards will be grants and not contracts.  The CEC will pay actual expenditures in accordance with the budget up to the maximum capped rates.

	Q.19
	Please explain more on the flexibility of funding amount as the currently specified single award max amount may likely be insufficient for Group#1 Fiber Optic Sensor monitoring of UGS Wells due to high cost in field test.

	A.19
	The max amount for any award under group one is $1,500,000. If additional funding is needed to accomplish the proposed projects goals, match funds would need to cover the additional costs. However, the CEC reserves the right to increase or decrease the available funding and the group minimum/maximum award amounts. 
For more details, please see the solicitation manual section I. F. Change in Funding amount on page 11.

	Q.20
	Do the California Spending requirement and California Entity requirement literally exclude applicants from other states?

	A.20
	No. As stated in Chapter II section A.1, “This solicitation is open to all public and private entities.” However, applicants that have most of the proposed CEC funds spent in California may be awarded up to 10 points under scoring criteria seven. In addition, there is another five points available for applicants using CEC funds on California based entities. Out-of-state entities can also spend awarded funds in California.  
For more details, please see the solicitation manual section IV.F Scoring Criteria.
Please also note that solicitation manual section II.A.3. explains how “All corporations, limited liability companies (LLCs), limited partnerships (LPs) and limited liability partnerships (LLPs) are required to be registered and in good standing with the California Secretary of State.”  

	Q.21
	How many awards are available in each group?

	A.21
	Group one was allocated $4,000,000 with up to $1,500,000 available per project. We anticipate three to four awards for this group. Group two was allocated $2,600,000 with up to $1,500,000 available per project. We anticipate one to two awards for this group. Group three was allocated $3,000,000 with up to $3,000,000 available per project. We anticipate one award for this group.

	Q.22
	Does CEC wish to retain any intellectual property? 

	A.22
	Yes.  Please refer to the terms and conditions.  For example, per the natural gas standard grant Terms and Conditions, “The Energy Commission makes no ownership, license, or royalty claims to preexisting intellectual property, independently funded intellectual property, or project relevant pre-existing or independently funded intellectual property. “Ownership” means exclusive possession and control of all rights to property, including the right to use and transfer property.” In addition, under Intellectual Property “The Recipient owns all intellectual property, subject to the licenses described in subsection b.” However, “The Energy Commission has a no-cost, non-exclusive, transferable, irrevocable, royalty-free, worldwide, perpetual license to use, publish, translate, modify, and reproduce intellectual property for governmental purposes.” Also, “The Energy Commission owns all products identified in the Scope of Work, with the exception of products that fall within the definition of ‘intellectual property.’”
Applicants are strongly encouraged to read their applicable Terms and Conditions at https://www.energy.ca.gov/funding-opportunities/funding-resources 

	Q.23
	What is the expected period of performance for contracts?  2 years? 3 years?

	A.23
	We anticipate most projects will need three years to complete, and anticipate an agreement end date around June of 2023.

	Q.24
	Are we to use the PIER terms and conditions?

	A.24
	Yes. Solicitation awardees will use the PIER Natural Gas Grant Terms and Conditions for all agreements. 
See Answer to question 17.

	Q.25
	On Page 23 of the application manual and in item 7), it states that:
“The budget must NOT identify that Energy Commission’s natural gas funds will be spent outside of the United States or for out of country travel.  However, match funds may cover these costs if there are no legal restrictions.”
Does this mean that any proposed research work (e.g. analytical and/or lab testing) cannot be conducted outside of US under CEC fund?  The only possible way for doing this is to use match fund for this purpose, even though this early stage work is to support subsequent field test/demonstration at the sites within California.  Please let us know if our understanding is correct.

	A.25
	Yes. CEC funds cannot be used for work performed outside the United States. If work being proposed will be conducted outside the United States, match funds must be used.

	Q.26
	Do the matching funds (205) need to be on the top of the allocated grant (say, 1,500,000.00, so the total will be 1,800,000.00) or it is to be included in the grant amount?

	A.26
	Applicants will enter the match share in attachment 7 in the cells for the applicable categories. This amount is separate from the amount of CEC funds requested.

	Q.27
	[Entity] is ready to provide 300K worth of equipment for the duration of monitoring. Can it be counted as matching by itself, or it needs to be counted as a contribution in form of renting?

	A.27
	Preexisting equipment may be counted as in-kind match. Applicants may count it as a renting expense for the duration of its use or using a straight line depreciation method using the amount of time the equipment will be used for this project.  

	Q.28
	Will the Pre-Application Workshop presentation, discussion, and other material be made available to GFO applicants on the Energy Commission’s solicitation website?

	A.28
	Yes, all materials from the Pre-Application Workshop such as the presentation slides, presentation recording, attendee list and questions and answers will be posted on the solicitation page on the CEC’s website located here: https://www.energy.ca.gov/solicitations/2019-10/gfo-19-502-storage-monitoring-smart-shutoff-and-3d-mapping-technologies-safer 

	Q.29
	Please clarify that the maximum award per vendor for Group 1 is $1.5M and that there will be 3 vendors selected for this project group. Also, please clarify that the total funded amount for all vendors is $4M.

	A.29
	Applicants can be awarded up to $1,500,000 of CEC funds for their project. Group 1 has $4,000,000 allocated to fund proposed projects, and as many as four projects may be awarded.

	Q.30
	Please clarify our understanding of the 20% Match Fund section. For instance, if the award to a vendor is $1M, and equipment of $200,000 is provided for the project (20%), who retains ownership of the equipment at the end of the project?

	A.30
	As between the CEC and applicant, equipment purchased with match funding is retained by the applicant.  
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